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Hospital 

Summary 

SCOPE Of HOSPITAL 

FUNCTIONS 

The Edenhope and District 
Memorial Hospital is a public acute 
hospital with 20 acute beds, 
providing. maternity, general and 
acute medical, general surgical and 
paediatric care, and a public 
nursing home of 18 beds. 
Additional services provided 
include Physiotherapy. Podiatry. 
Occupational Health, Speech 
Therapy. Optometry. Dietetics. 
Dentistry., Pathology. Radiology. 
Community Health, District Nursing 
and Meals on Wheels. Whilst it does 
not have a registered ou tpatients 
service. it does provide an 
emergency outpatients service. 

MINISTERIAL 

RESPONSIBILITY 

The Honourable Robert Knowles 
M.LC. is the current Minister for 
Health. 

The Hospital is located at 128 

-134 Elizabeth Street Edenhope. 
Victoria. 3318. 

The Postal Address is P.0. Box 
75, Edenhope, Victoria. 3318. 

The Telephone number is (03) 

5585 1188. 

The Facsimile number is (03) 

5585 1405 

The hospital began in 1910 and 
at that time it was situated in a 
house owned by Mr. Tabby Preece, 
in Elizabeth Street. The building 
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was called Minogues, the name of 
the midwife who worked there at 
that t ime .  In 1913 .  it became a 
Bush Nursing Hospital .  The hospital 
was rebu i lt in 1920. becoming two 
wards with a total of five beds. It 

continued to function in this 
manner until 1950. at which time 
contro l of the hospital was 
transferred to the Hospitals and 
Charities Comm ission. During 1961 

the hospital underwent an upgrade 
and was extended, making i ta 23 
bed hospital. In 1981 approval was. 
given for eight beds in the Nurses 
Home to be reallocated as eight 
nursing home beds. giving the 
hospital a total of 31 beds. In 
1988/89. a new nursing home was 
built ,  creating a facility of 20 acute 
beds and 18 nursing home beds. 
During 1990 work was completed 
on upgrading the "Halahan Wing" 
mak ing it a new den tal and 
ancil lary services wing. During 
1992 and 1993,  the "Craig Wing" of 
the hospital was extensively 
upgraded with the conversion on 
the construction of a 17  bed hostel 
and was completed in March 1997. 

A new"cook-chi l l "  kitchen and 
commercial laundry commenced 
contruction in June 1996 and were 
commissioned in December 1996. 

The latest development has been 
the construction of a community 
health centre, housing adult day 
care, all ied health, dental suite and 
community and district nursing 
This project was comp leted in 
September 1997. 



PHILOSOPHY 

Community 

The Hospital is concerned with 
achieving the most efficient use of 
resources allocated to it in fulfilling 
the needs of the community for 
high quality health care services. 

Patients 

The Hospital believes that, at 
all times. every patient is entitled 
to receive high quality health care 
and that each person is an 
individual with differing and 
changing physical. physiological. 
emotional and spiritual needs and 
should therefore be accorded full 
recognition of his or her dignity. 
integrity and rights. 

Staff 

The Hospital recognises the 
importance of members of staff as 
the primary strength in the 
achievement of Hospital goals. It 
therefore needs to attract and 
retain staff of the highest quality. 
The Hospital acknowledges the 
need for teamwork and the 
development of a working 
environment which enables each 
individual to attain their full 
potential. The Hospital seeks the 
constructive participation of all 
staff in achieving the common goal 
to provide high quality health care 
lo the community .  

Other Health Care Providers 

The Hospital will maintain close 
liaison with other health care and 
welfare agencies to ensure that the 
overall delivery of services within 
the region are optimised and 
thereby compliment rather than 
duplicate services. 

OBJECTIVES 

Consistent with the 
philosophies of the Eden hope and 
District Memorial Hospital the 
following objectives will be 
implemented to the extent of the 
resources of the Hospital. 

To ensure that the highest 
quality patient care is provided for 
the Edenhope and District 
community within the limits of 
available resources and gu idelines 
as set by the Health Department of 
Victoria. 

To set and achieve standards 
consistent with prevailing 
principals of quality patient care 
and community health needs. 

To establish and maintain an 
appropriate balance in the 
provision and use of resources for 
health protection. health 
promotion .  health education and 
treatment services. 

To encourage harmonious 
relationships with all staff 
members. providing employees a 
safe working environment. job 
satisfaction and development of 
personal sk i l ls. 
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President's 

Report 

Mt. Ron Hawkins, President 
Board of Management 

Life Governors. Ladies and 
Gentleman, it is my pleasure to 
present on behalf of the Board of 
Management, the 36th Annual 
Report of the Edenhope and District 
Memorial Hospital, for the year 
ending 30th June, 1997. 

This is my third consecutive 
year as President and my 23rd as a 
member of the Board of 
Management. I can honestly say 
that this year has seen the greatest 
expansion that I have seen in my 
time at the hospital. 

Accreditation 

This year has also been one of 
major achievements in other areas. 
in particular the area of quality. For 
the first time ever, the hospital has 
sought to be surveyed by the 
Australian Council on Healthcare 
Standards. It is with great pride 
that we can now say that this is a 
fully accredited facility, as we were 
awarded a full three year 
accreditation. This major milestone 
has only occurred, as a result of all 
of the staff working together as a 
team. There is one person whom a 
special mention must be made. 
Miss Sandra Hinch. our Director of 
Nursing. Sandra, in addition to her 
normal duties, has also undertaken 
the role of accreditation co 
ordinator and as such she has 
carried most of the responsibility 
for this survey. 

New Facilities 

In April 1996, work commenced 
on the construction of our new 
hostel, "The Lakes Hostel" This was 
followed shortly after by the start of 
the construction of the new "cook 
chil l" kitchen and laundry. Part of 
the kitchen/laundry extension was 
the refurbishment of the staff 
quarters, staff dining room. 
mortuary and various storage 
areas. The construction of our new 
community centre commenced in 
February 1997 and inc luded a new 
adu l t  day care centre. allied health 
and dental rooms. and district 
nursing and commun ity health 
offices. The new kitchen and 
laundry were completed in 
February 1997 and the hostel 
received its first residents on the 
26th March 1997. 
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The community centre was 
completed on the 17th October 
1997 . 

The total cost of these new 
facilities is slightly in excess of two 
million dollars. 

The opening of the new hostel 
has complemented our existing 
services. by f i l l i n g  in the gap 
between home based services and 
those members of our community 
who require more intensive care. It 
was pleasing to see how quickly 
the hostel achieved 100% 
occupancy. which was indicative of 
the need for such a facility and 
endorsed the hospitals actions in 
spending such a large amount of 
money on th is project. 

W i th the completion of our own 
laundry. we have become more 
cost efficient and increased the 
number of people who are 
employed locally. 

The new cook-chill kitchen is a 
"state of the art" facility. It  provides 
the hospital with a quality product. 
that is produced with maximum 
efficiency and has scope for 
expansion at a m in imal cost. 

Future Building Program 

W i th the completion of the 
current building program, the 
hosp ital has now turned its 
attention to those remaining 
facilities, that could be seen as 
being in need of refurbishment or 
replacement. These inc lude the 
acute hospital , physiotherapy and 
administration. In discussion with 
our Regional Office. we have been 
given a strong indication that a 
feasibility study is likely to occur in 
the 1998/99 financial year, which is 
the first step towards a new 
hospital 

Needs Analysis 
and Service Plan 

The Department of Human 
Services has funded a needs 
analysis and service plan for this 
hospital. I t has passed the draft 
stage and the final document is due 
to be released early in the 1997/98 
financial year The draft report has 
indicated that the services provided 
by the hospital .  are both 
appropriate and cost effective 



Board of Management 

The Board of Management has 
seen two changes to its 
composition this year, with Mr. 
Ross /McDonald and Mrs. Susan 
Cormack, having resigned. The 
Board currently consists of ten 
members and it has been agreed 
to maintain it at that level. at this 
point in time. The members of the 
board can be very proud of the 
achievements of the hospital in 
what can only be described as 
difficult times. The complexity of 
healthcare organisations has 
multiplied many times over and it 
now requires a much greater 
commitment from members, to 
remain abreast of new 
developments. I would like to 
thank them on your behalf for their 
excellent representation. 

Staff 

The significant improvements 
that have occurred would not have 
been achieved had it not been for 
our dedicated staff. The confidence 
and pride that the community has 
in the care provided by us, is 
testament to the dedication of the 
people who work here. We have 
had a number of changes within 
membership of the staff employed 
at the hospital. June Voigt, Chris 
Mulraney, Jennifer Carter and 
Fiona Mulraney, have all resigned 
and I would like to thank them for 
their many years of service. 

New permanent staff that have 
been employed this year include, 
Janine Retallick, Elwyn Cameron, 
Narelle Hempel, Ansela Johnston, 
Maureen Lee, Kerry Chaston and 
Sheree Welch and we welcome 
them to our team. 

This year has seen a number of 
staff achieving notable milestones 
in their careers with this hospital 
Pauline Kelly has provided the 
hospital with her services for 
twenty years and we both applaud 
and thank her for this. Janet 
Farran, fifteen years and Gloria 
Clarke and Barbara Clarke, ten 
years are also very worthy of your 
congratulations. The dedication of 
these people will be recognised at 
a presentation later in the evening 
I would like to again thank our 

Director of Nursing, for her quiet 
but determined leadership and 
congratulate her on what she has 
achieved this year. Mr. Timothy 
Free, our Chief Executive Officer. 
has demonstrated his leadership, 
foresight and commitment and 
succeeded in bringing our current 
building program to a satisfactory 
completion. His philosophy of 
setting goals that appear to be 
unachievable. has resulted the 
continued advancement of this 
hospital. Dr. Phil Dover has taken 
up the challenge of coping as a 
single practitioner. pending the 
appointment of a replacement for 
Dr. Bade. His experience and 
knowledge as a rural GP has given 
our community a great deal of 
confidence. 

Finance 

We continue to be confronted 
by new reductions in our funding, 
as both State and Federal 
governments try to reduce costs. 
This year has seen a rationalisation 
of more healthcare facilities with 
some closures and a number of 
amalgamations. This hospital is 
still viable, however as each new 
cost cutting measure is announced 
the pressure on our finances 
increases and the opportunities for 
increasing services and improving 
our facilities decreases. 

Fundraising 

The hospital is very fortunate in 
having a number of major 
fundraising groups and a large 
number of service groups and 
individuals to support it. 
Fundraising this year concentrated 
upon our appeal to raise funds for 
the furnishing of our new facilities. 
This appeal was launched at our 
last AGM, with a special donation 
by Geoff and Helen Handbury, of 
$25,000. The Murray to Moyne 
Cycle Relay Team, participated in 
this rigorous event again, its sixth 
consecutive year. Not only do they 
put themselves through the trials of 
this marathon and spend countless 
hours training , but they also 
devote much of their time to 
fundraising Given the size of their 
donation, it is obvious that they 
have been very successul in that 
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area. With a huge donation of 
$13.370, they have brought their 
total fundraising to $56.694 for the 
six years Words of appreciation for 
this effort would be inadequate. 
however I am sure that they are as 
proud as we are thankful. 

A special note of 
congratulations to Neil Pahl who 
rode the full 520 kilometres and 
topped this effort with his 
fundraising which exceeded 
$2.000. 

The members of our Hospital 
Auxiliary always surprise us with 
the level of their fundraising. This 
year a total of $9.000 was donated 
to the hospital. which was directed 
to our furnishings appeal. 

Other major donors this year 
included Barkarla Flats for the 
Aged, $5,000, the now disbanded 
Edenhope Motorcycle Club, $4,840. 
Mr. Peter Carracher, $3.000 and the 
Apsley/Langkoop RSL, $2,540. The 
Neuarpurr angling club held their 
annual country music festival. part 
of the proceeds of which are 
donated to the hospital. Their 
donation of $1,500 was received 
after the 30th June, but it is most 
appropriate to recognise their great 
work. In total the hospital received 
a total of $72,416 in donations. 
which is a superb effort from such a 
small community. As I say at this 
time every year. our hospital is very 
well equipped, with a wide range 
of the latest medical technology 
and this would not be possible 
without the support of our donors 

Patient Care Services 

The hospital most significant 
impact upon patient care has been 
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the retirement from full time 
practice by Dr. R. W. Bade. Ron has 
given 3 years of service to this 
community and has been directly 
responsible for many of its 
advances. The improvements in 
medical treatments and the 
increase in the variety of services 
offered to our patients is a tribute to 
his drive and determination and it 
has often placed this hospital at the 
forefront of medical advances. This 
is evidenced by the recent 
controversy in Horsham, where 
chemotherapy treatment is not 
available. but has been available at 
Eden hope for many years. 

Conclusions 

I feel that I have been 
particularly fortunate to have been 
elected as President of this hospital, 
during a period where i ts 
development is occurring at such a 
rapid pace. W ith many government 
departments retreating from rural 
areas, it is very pleasing to be a 
part of an organisat ion that is 
expending and supporting its 
community . 

Both State and Federal 
governments are continuing to 
reduce funding to the health 
system and the evidence points to 
l i t t le change in this area, as the 
Austral ian population continues to 
age. The hospital will need to be 
mindful of these trends in 
determining future expenditure, but 
within current funding 
arrangements we are a very viable 
organ isation. 

Ron Hawkins 
President, Board of Management 



Life Governors, distinguished guests, ladies and gentlement. 

During the 1996/97 financial year, the Edenhope & District Memorial 
Hospital continued along the path of financial success. The organisation 
achieved a surplus of S3O7.595 which included capital grants relating to the 
building projects of S255.181. leaving an operating surplus of S52.414. This 
surplus was an excellent result given that during the year the organisation 
increased staffing levels by 6.25 equivalent full time employees (EFT). 
dedicated significant resources towards the attainment of accreditation status 
and administered capital projects to the tune of two million dollars. A 
comparison of 1996/97 to 1995/96 can be seen in the following table: 

1996/97 1995/96 variance % 

Capital Grants $255,181 $600.3O6 ($345,125) 

Operating Revenue $2,917.925 $2,849,583 $68,342 2% 

Operating Expenditure $2,865.511 $2,668.033 $197.478 7% 

Organisation Surplus $307.595 $781,856 ($474,261) 

Less Capital Grants ($255,181) ($600.,3O6) ($345,125) 

Operating Surplus $52.414 $181,550 ($129.136) 

Equivalent Full Time 
49.7O 43.45 6.3 15% Staff (EFT) 

As can be seen from the table. operating revenue increased 2% whilst 
operating expenditure increased by 7%, demonstrating a committment by 
management to continuous quality improvement of this health service. Much 
of this increase in expenditure is attributed to increased staffing such as 
providing diversional therapy in the Nursing Home during the afternoons. an 
accreditation assistant and extra groundstaff to complete all the additional 
landscaping around the new bu i ldings. 

The stability of the organisation can be seen when looking at the balance 
sheet which shows total assets at $4,269.687 with total l iabilities at 
$881,6OO. This gives an extremely sound assets to liabilities ratio of 4.84.1 .  A 
comparison of the situation at 30th June 1997 tO 30th June 1996 is as follows: 

Description 3O/6/97 30/6/96 Variance % 

Total Liabilities $881,60O $839,O78 $42,522 5% 

Current Assets $272.4O2 $1,289,359 ($1,O16,957 (79%) 

Non-Current Assets $3,997,285 $2,630,211 $1,367,O74 52% 

Total Assets $4,269,687 $3 ,919,570 $35O.117 9% 

As can be seen from the table there has been a conversion of assets from 
current. ie. cash reserves held on term deposit . to non-current assets. ie. the 
bricks and mortar of the new Hostel. Kitchen Laundry re-development and 
the progress to date of the new Adult Day Care Centre 

Donald Currie 
Treasurer 
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Report on 
Operations 

DEMOGRAPHY 

The Hospital is situated in an 
intensive farming region, largely 
based upon sheep, with a minor 
amount of cattle and cropping. 
There is little manufacturing within 
the area and the tertiary sector is 
comparatively small. The nearest 
significant population centres are 
the City of Hamilton. 125 km away. 
the City of Horsham. 96 kms away 
and the Town of Naracoorte, 55 
kms away. The hospital services the 
area largely comprising the West 
Wimmera Shire which is 5,469 
Square kilometres in area, but also 
services area of the Lowan Arapiles, 
Kaniva, Glenelg and Wannon 
Shires. The population of the Shire 
of Kowree was 3 .527 as reported in 
the 1991 Census. 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

AND INDUSTRIAL 

RELATIONS 

There have been no significant 
changes in the staffing policy or 
human resources during the year. 
There was no lost time due to 

industrial disputes or accidents. 

PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

No employee of the hospital is 
required to complete a declaration 
of pecuniary interests. Board 
members are required to declare 
any interests in matters to be 
discussed at Board meetings at the 
beginning of that meeting 

FREEDOM OF 

INFORMATION 

The hospital receives requests 
for information from patients .  
medical practitioners and/or legal 
representatives. All such requests 
have been resolved and no 
app l ication was made under the 
Freedom of Information Act during 
the year. 

PUBLICATIONS 

No other publications relating to 
the operations of the Hospital were 
produced this year. 
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MAJOR COMMITTEES 

The following Sub-Committees 
meet on a monthly basis and 
forward their recommendations to 
the full Board of Management. 

Building Sub-Committee 

Reports to the Board on the 
projects currently under 
construction .  

House and Works 
Sub-Committee 

Monitors the maintenance of 
Hospital grounds .  buildings and 
equipment, makes 
recommendations on major and 
minor works items .  

Finance Sub-Committee 

Examines financial reports. 
budgets, staffing levels. debt 
co llection and accounting 
procedures and satisfies itself that 
all funds and investments are held 
to the best advantage and in a 
secure form. 

The Board is satisfied that these 
Committees are functioning 
effectively and are fulfilling the 
purpose for which they were 
established 

ASSET PURCHASES 

Consistent with our policy of 
replacement of equipment and 
upgrading of the physical 
infrastructure .  the following assets 
have been p u r c h a s e d  

Cardiac Monitor Defibrillator . . . . . .  7,813 
Pulse Oximetre - oxysnap ...2.855 
Nurse Call/Paging System . . . . . . . .21 .810  
Laundry Equipment . . . . . . . . . .. 4 0 . 0 0 0  
Plant re new areas . · . . . . . 33 . 203  
Furnishings . . . 2 0 . 5 2 1  
Computer Networking . 2.913 
East-Stand Lifter 2.360 
Electric Bed . . . . . . . . 3. , 5 0 0  
Motor Vehicles 80.628 
Kitchen Equipment 2 1 9 . 5 0 9  
Hostel fencing etc 30.628 
Electrolux Floor Washer . . . . . .  . 3 . 5 9 5  
Telephone PABX Extension 1 .940 

Total Asset Purchases 471,275 



ASSET SALES 

The actual cost of asset 
purchases have been offset by 
asset sales which were as follows: 

Motor Vehicles ..... .69,990 
Sundry Equipment 2.500 

Total Asset Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 2 , 4 9 0  

CONSULTANCIES 

Robert Miles and Associates, 
architects of Mount Gambier, have 
provided architectural services for 
the construction of our hostel. 

kitchen/laundry and adult day 
centre projects. The lee structure is 
based upon the completed cost of 
the projects. The total cost of 
architectural services was: 

Hostel 52.171 
(project completed) 
Kitchen Laundry re-dev23.128 (project 
completed) 
Adult Day Care Centre 14.635 
(Expense to 30/6/97 - project in 
progress) 

Report on 
Operations 

COMPARATIVE SERVICE & ACTIVITY TARGETS 96/97 95/96 94/95 93/94 4 Yr. Avg. 

Service/Activity Acute Services 
Admitted Patients Separations 
Acute 508 626 550 614 575 
Same Day Acute 147 73 112 169 125 
Sub-Total Acute 655 699 662 783 700 
Nursing Home Type 33 14 7 6 15 
Total Admitted Patient Separations 688 713 669 789 715 

Admitted Patient Beddays 
Acute 3504 4075 3818 4020 3854 
Nursing Home Type 1228 989 850 777 961 
Total Admitted Patient Beddays 4732 5064 4668 4797 4815 

Admitted Patient WIES 
Acute 620 690 670 744 681 
Ratio Separations: WEIS 0.9466 0.09876 1.0235 0.9577 0.9788 
Average Length of Stay 
Acute 4.24 5.83 5.83 5 .17 5 
Nursing Home Type 19.49 70.64 121.43 129.5 85 
Occupancy 65% 73% 64% 66% 67% 

Residential Services 

Nursing Home Beddays 6569 6498 6563 6561 6548 
Nursing Home Occupancy 99.98% 98.90% 99.89% 99.86% 99.66% 

Hostel Beddays (Opened 26/3/97) 904 Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Hostel Occupancy 59% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Outpatient Services 
Occassions of Service 16270 16518 16584 20702 17519 

Page 9 



Report on 
Operations 

Acute Aged Primary 
Health Care Care Other Total 

ACTIVITY DATA No. No. NO. NO. No. 

Admitted Patients 
1. Separations 
i. Acute 508 508 
ii. Non-Acute 33 33 

iii. Same Day 147 147 
Total (1) 688 688 

2. Patient Beddays 
i. Acute 3357 3357 
ii. Non-Acute 1228 1228 
iii. Same Day 147 147 
Total (2) 4732 4732 

3. Residential Beddays 
i. Nursing Home 6569 6569 
ii. Hostel 904 904 
Total (3) 6569 904 7473 
Non-Admitted Patients 

4. Outpatient Services 
(Hospital Based) 
Allied Health & Radiography 2038 2038 

5. 0ther 
Community Health Nurse 5219 2519 
Dental 87 87 
District Nursing 3530 3530 
Adult Day Care Centre 3781 3781 
Meals on Wheels 3506 3506 
Total (4) & (5) 2038 7311 2606 3506 15461 

Acute Aged Primary 
Health Care Care Other Total 

COST DATA $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 

Admitted Patients 
1. Separations 
i. Acute 1222 1222 
ii. Non-Acute 168 168 
iii. Same Day 18 18 
Total (1) 1408 1408 

2. Patient Beddays 
i. Acute 1222 1222 
ii. Non-Acute 168 168 
iii. Same Day 18 18 
Total (2) 1408 1408 

3. Residential Beddays 
i. Nursing Home 839 839 
ii. Hostel 61 61 
Total (3) 839 61 900 
Non-Admitted Patients 

4. Outpatient Services 
(Hospital Based) 
Allied Health & Radiography 74 74 

5. 0ther 
Community Health Nurse 64 64 
Dental 29 29 
District Nursing 79 79 
Adult Day Care Centre 97 97 
Meals on Wheels 19 19 
Total (4) & (5) 74 176 93 19 362 
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Acute Aged Primary Report on AVERAGE COST Health Care Care Other Total 
PER ACTIVITY $ $ $ $ $ 

Operations Admitted Patients 
1. Separations 
i. Acute 2406 2406 
ii. Non-Acute 5098 5098 
iii. Same Day 122 122 
Total (1) 7626 7626 

2. Patient Beddays 
i. Acute 364 364 
ii. Non-Acute 137 137 

iii. Same Day 122 122 
Total (2) 623 623 

3. Residential Beddays 
i. Nursing Home 128 128 
ii. Hostel 67 67 

Total (3) 128 67 195 

Non-Admitted Patients 

4. Outpatient Services 
(Hospital Based) 
Allied Health & Radiography 36 36 

5. 0ther 
Community Health Nurse 25 25 
Dental 333 333 
District Nursing 22 22 
Adult Day Care Centre 26 26 
Meals on Wheels 5 5 

Total (4) & (5) 36 48 359 5 449 

MAJOR FINANCIAL 
NOTES 

1996/97 1995/96 1994/95 1993/94 
COMPARATIVE INDICATORS $$$ $$$ 94/95-95/96 $$$ 

Total Expenses l 2865511 2668033 2582469 2710903 
Total Revenue 2 3173106 3449889 2641812 2631941 
Operating surplus/(Deficit) 307595 781856 213991 -78962 
Retained Earnings 3388087 3080492 2298636 2226200 
Total Assets 4269687 3919570 2823882 2696329 
Total Liabilities 881600 839078 586815 504473 
Net Assets/Total Equity 3388087 3080492 2239067 5191856 
Salaries and Salary on-Costs 1993942 1831981 1700927 1799095 
Cash Reserves 

Investments Nil 1006115 412918 250000 
Cash At Bank 29666 186119 159317 151861 
Total Cash Reserves 29666 1192234 572235 401861 

Note 1, 93/94 Includes Abnormal Item, devaluation of land and buildings $146.901 
Note 2, 95/96 Includes capital grants for construction projects of $578.156. 96/97 Includes 
capital grants for construction projects of $255,181 
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Chief 
Executive 
Officer 
Report 

Timothy Free 
Chief Executive Officer 

An annual report is usually a 
bland review of the year that has 
passed. With the opening of our 
four capital projects, it occurred to 
me that this was the culmination of 
seven years work. rather than one. 
I would like to comment upon my 
time at Edenhope, with a view to 
the past, present and future. 

The Last Seven Years 

At first when the need to 
improve our financial position 
became evident, every section of 
our hospital took steps to improve 
their productivity, while never 
losing sight of the role they play in 
providing a high quality service. 
Then came Jeff Kennett. 

Not only were we trying to 

achieve a surplus. but we also 
faced massive budget cuts. We 
needed to find more productivity 
savings. once again the staff 
accepted this challenge and more 
opportunities were found for doing 
it well. but at a lower cost. Of 
primary consideration was the 
need to maintain our quality of 
care. 

The years roll on. more 
surpluses are achieved. more cuts 
were implemented, I know that at 
times twas starting to loose the 
Support of some staff, "why do we 
need to keep a tight rem on our 
costs when we have so much 
money in the bank?" 

The last two years, were a 
dream realised. We now have an 
appropriate range of services and 
with the exception of the acute 
hospital, physiotherapy and 
administration , the services that 
we provide are all housed in high 
quality accommodation 

This year. we have again been 
savaged by budget cuts. Have we 
reduced services? No. Have we 
retrenched staff? No. In fact by the 
end of this financial year. as a 
result of the expansion of our 
services, I believe that we will 
employ more staff than we did in 
1990. We employed 51.2 EFT then. 
and at the end of 96/97 we 
employed 4 9. 7  EFT We did get as 
low as 42 EFT in 94/95. 1s o u r  
v i a b i l i t y  t h r e a t e n e d ?  No. but o t h e r  
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hospitals in the area are. Are we 
going to c o n t i n u e  to make l a r g e  
surpluses? No, but we will continue 
to be viable. 

We now have a s i g n i f i c a n t  level 
of support from the Regional Office 
of the Department of Human 
Services in B a l l a r a t ,  which is a nice 
change.  given the relationship that 
had developed in past years I 
would like to thank all of these 
people. in particular Mr. Ron Tiffen 

our Regional Director and Mr. Geoff 
Isles our Manager .  Provider 
M a n a g m e n t  

Future 

My crystal b a l l  t e l l s  me that 
98/99 w i l l  see a feasibility  study 
done on a r e f u r b i s h m e n t  of the 
remaining faci lities as mentioned 
previously. What this means is that 
we would hope for a capital 
allocation in 99/2000 and a 
completion of the project in 2 0 0 2. 
Somewhat sim ilar to the old Russian 
five year plan. 

Staffing 

Every department.  probably 
every employee at this hospital.  has 
always had the best i n t e r e s t s  of the 
people we look after at heart. From 
the nursing home which provides 
the highest qual ity of care to those 
people who can least complain, to 
the acute hospital which, 
considering that it is only a 20 bed 
facility. provides an exceptionally 
wide range of care. The domestic 
staff who maintain such a high level 
of cleanliness for all of our facilities. 
the catering staff who have taken 
up the challenge of using our new 
cooking system and refining it to 
suit our requirements. The hostel 
staff that have made the residents of 
this new service feel that they are 
part of an extended family and 
therefore made the transition from 
their homes so much easier The day 
centre which contributes so much to 
helping to maintain a better lifestyle 
for its clients . our district nurses who 
provide such a valuable service in 
helping to maintain people in their 
own homes. Our community health 
nurse who wears such a variety of 
hats. yet manages to fulfill each task 
so well The all ied health staff who 



visit the hospital, provide a 
valuable service and who become 
very much part of the spirit. Finally 
the administrative staff. who work 
in such poor conditions. have faced 
and met the challenge of 
accreditation and continually 
provide support for all other 
services. The whole organisation 
works as a team. working together 
to meet the challenges and 
achieving our goals. 

These are the people that have 
made my dreams a reality. 

Thank You 

To the Board of Management, 
who have let me run on a fairly 
long lead in the past couple of 
years. I hope that your confidence 
in me has not been misplaced. 

To Sandra Hinch. I thank you 
for your continued support and 
encouragement and for the huge 
role you have played as 
accreditation co-ordinator. 

To my staff in the office. who 
put up with my moods. the total 
disarray in my office. my lack of 
attention to detail and the cramped 
conditions that they work under. 

To Dr. Ron Bade and Dr. Phil 
Dover our visiting medical officers. 
we started out not sure of one 
another. the reputation that Ron 
Bade had as a fairly tough person 
preceded my arrival. I am pleased 

to say that we worked well 
together and I thank them for their 
help in making my job easier. So 
many of my peers suffer the fate of 
continually fighting with the 
VMO's. When it all boiled down to 
it. the three of us all wanted the 
same things. high quality care. 
good equipment and facilities and 
a 30 hour week 

Conclusion 

We are likely to form alliances 
and amalgamate with other health 
facilities, which is a complete 
change of direction from the past. 
as we always sought self 
sufficiency. The rationalisation of 
health care services is gathering 
momentum and if we do not form a 
strategic plan for ourselves. we 
may find that we will be presented 
with an alternative that we not 
believe is in our best interests. 
Working together with other health 
care organisations will not weaken 
our position, rather provide us with 
the opportunity to provide a wider 
range of appropriate and cost 
efficient services. 

We will be here in 2013, so we 
had better start planning for the 
hospitals centenary. 

Timothy Free 
Chief Executive Officer 
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BOARD PRESIDENT 

Mt. R. R. Hawkins 

VICE-PRESIDENT 

Mr. M. Holland 
PMrs. E. Kealy 

TREASURER 

Mr. D. Currie 

BOARD MEMBERS 

Dr. R. W. Bade 
Dr. P A. J. Dover 
Mrs. J. L. Heffernan 
Mr. R. McDonald Resigned 
Mr. M. Holland 
Mr. C. Kealy 
Mrs. E. Kealy 

LIFE GOVERNORS 

Mt. M. C. Crawford 
Mrs. S. Dubois 
Mr. L M. Bull 
Mr. R. T. Hood 
Mrs. L. A. Hadden 
Mrs. L. Stephens 
Dr. R. W. Bade 
Mr. E. J . Narik 
Mt. J . L. Jenkins 
Mrs. C. A. Hood 
Mt. R. McDonald 
Mr. R. R. Hawkins 
Mr. J. S. Warner 
Mrs. L Oliver 

REGIONAL DELEGATES 

MIS. E. M. M. Edgar 
Mrs. J. L. Heffernan 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Mr. T. J . Free 

DIRECTOR OF NURSING 

Miss. S. Hinch 

VISITING MEDICAL OFFICERS 

Dr. R. W. Bade 
Dr. P . A .  J . Dover 
Dr. P. Bade 
Dr. R. Jarvis 
Mr. J . Williams 
Mr. E. Miller 
Dr. A. Floyd 
Dr. L. Agrawal 
Dr. Sia ter 
Dr. D. Fahey 

VISITING SPECIALIST SERVICES 

Dentist: Mr. M. Szokalski 

Gerontologist: Mr. J . Hurley 

Physiotherapist: Hamilton Base 
Hospital 

Medical Records Administrator: 

Mrs. K. Borgelt 

Speech Therapist: WHCG 

Occupational Therapist: WHCG 

Podiatrist: Mrs. I . Johnston 

Optometrist: Mt. R. Liddy 

AUDITOR 

Auditor General Victoria 
Agents: Callaway & Hecht 

BANKERS 

National Australia Bank 

ARCHITECTS - CONSTRUCTION 

Robert Miles 

ARCHITECTS - MASTERPLANNING 

Silver Thomas Hanley 
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Staff 

Employed 

STAFF EMPLOYED DURING 1995/96 

M. D Buckley V. L. Dishon L. A. King 
P. J. Cameron R. M. Winter L. Dover 
E. F. Carracher E. M. Seabrook K. M. Wilson 
H. H. Wheeler A. J.  Lloyd M L  Colgate 
M. A. White K. Robinson J. E. Nunan 
P M. Kelly M. Tansey S. T. Woollard 
D. J. Field D. R. Clifton C. A. Johnson 
S. J. Hinch B. C  Clark D. L. Whitehead 
L. T. Mulchany M. J .  Forster J. H. Retallick 
J. E. Farran H. M. Fergusson E. C. Cameron 
D . L  Mcleish J. M. White S. L. Burns 
S . C .  Walker H. F. Shields A. Cornish 
D. J .  Young C. A. Middleton T. A. Pahl 
W . M .  Smith E. M. Colgate P. A. Deleeuw 
T. A. Burgess A. P. Saunders M. A. Munn 
M A. Finnigan T. J .  P Free B. J. Colgate 
A. F. Burford s. G. Cranage K. H. T. Rodgers 
B. A. Clark M. E. Dishon C. Kreiter 
L. J. Voigt W . L  Cryer N. J .  Hempel 
G. J _  Clarke J. A. Ackland A . D . J  
E. M. Carter c. R. Castello Johnston 

J .  M. McClure A. Caldow M. F. Lee 

C. L. Mulraney A. J. Pretlove A. Smyth 

G. M. Hannaford N. Tansley K. L. Chaston 

J. A. Carter S . L  Cryer J. M. Adams 
J _  F. vanzini A L. King D. S Welsh 

N. A. Pahl M. T. Hinkley L. E. Thomson 
F. M. Mulraney" S Schmidt J _  E. Goodwin 

C. E. McDonald K. Foster J_ R. Schuller 
A. M. Sheridan T. Hocking 

Indicates those staff who have resigned during the 1994/95 financial year. 

STAFFING LEVELS 

The following table depicts the current year staffing by departments 
compared to the prior five years actual staffing. 

Department 
EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT EFT 

89/90 90/91 91/92 92/93 93/94 94/95 95/96 96/97 

Direct Nursing 28 .07 27.90 26.78 26.76 25.67 22 .95 24 .27 23.39 
Community Nursing 0 69 0 85 0.85 0 .78 0.85 0.77 0.84 0 .91 

District Nursing 119 1.32 1.24 1 .12 1.01 1.08 1 . 1 1  1 3 7  

Hotel Services 13.46 12 50 13 .06 12 .10 10.74 10 .03 9 3 5  1 1 . 3 7  

Administrative Services 3 7 6  2.91 2 97 3.04 3 .01 3.46 3 8 2  4 .00 
Maintenance Services 3.55 3.25 2.71 2 .76 2.00 2 .00 2.00 3 00 

Allied Health Services 0 .51 0.48 1.03 1 .14 0.62 0 00 0 00 0.56 

Day Care Centre 212 2 .02 1.99 2 .01 2 .02 1 . 7 1  2 0 6  183 

Total 53.35 51.23 50.63 49.71 45.92 42.00 43.45 49.70 

age 16 
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Department 

Reports 

Sandra Hinch 

DIRECTOR OF 

NURSING'S REPORT 

This year has been a 
particularly challenging one 
throughout the hospital. An 
extensive building program and a 
goal to achieve accreditation in 
February 1997 certainly set the 
pace for the year 

Our efforts were rewarded with 
the attainment of Accreditation 
status for 3 years and the near 
completion of the building 
program. 

As all Department heads enter 
reports I will endeavour to give an 
overview of the departments and 
responsibilities I have had over the 
past year. 

The hospital plans to meet the 
wide range of healthcare needs and 
services that the community 
requires. To this effect it has been 
rewarding to be involved in the 
planning and establishment of the 
hospital renovations and building 
program. The addition of a hostel 
provides a much needed increase in 
the choice of assisted 
accommodation for aged residents. 
and since its opening Heather 
Fergusson and her staff have in a 
short time established a wonderful 
service and environment for the 
residents. Further, the opening of 
the new Day Care Centre next year, 
paves the way for extending 
programs for clients. and in 
addition benefits nursing home 
residents who now will have a 
dayroom and dining facility of their 
own. 

The ability to work as a well 
integrated organisation is desirable. 
if we are to provide a safe and 
seamless pattern of care. Preparing 
for accreditation has assisted in 
further developing our structures 
and processes to achieve this 
outcome. The willing sharing of 
accreditation information by other 
health facilities highlighted the 
benefit of such inter-hospital co 
operation . Even so. this information 
has to be acted upon in addition to 
meeting other criteria set by the 
ACHS. The willing participation of 
department head and staff 
members across the hospital 
facilitated a well co-ordinated, 
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multidisciplinary approach that was 
so important in the planning and 
preparation for accreditation The 
private time board members gave 
in attending quality assurance and 
accreditation meetings were much 
appreciated by staff. 

As accreditation co-ordinator 1 
would like to thank Amanda King 
who as assistant co-ordinator 
collated numerous hospital policies 
and finalised the fire and 
emergency manual. The role of 
typing and editing all this material 
fell to Mandy Pretlove, the 
professional manner in which she 
does her work can be seen in the 
presentation of our numerous 
manuals. 

Some important programs 
conducted by the nursing 
department included a wide range 
of quality assurance activities to 

monitor and improve our standard 
of care. ti is pleasing to note that 
ACHS surveyors commended this. 
The meeting of the Nursing Aspects 
Committee have been constructive 
in reviewing nursing policies, 
procedures and quality activites 
and I thank its members for their 
input and support. In addition. 
Meredith Finnigan and Dawn 
Clifton. Charge nurses in the Acute 
Ward and Nursing Home 
respectively have given good 
leadership in staff programs and 
care management, this has been 
well supported by the high 
professional standard of the nursing 
team. 

The coming year offers its own 
challenges in an ever changing 
environment however, there is a 
wonderful culture of care and co 
operation throughout the hospital. 
that I believe contributes in a 
unique way to style and standard of 
care provided and which ultimately 
contributes to its success 

Finally, thank you to the nursing 
staff and all departments for their 
support in what a very busy year 
and to Mr. Tim Free. Chief Executive 
Officer, for his guidance and 
assistance. 

Sandra Hinch 
Director of Nursing 

Accreditation and Quality 
Assurance Co-ordinator 



ACUTE NURSING 

REPORT 

This year I write my annual 
report with a great feeling of relief 
knowing that the uncertainty of 
Accreditation is behind us. The 
jubilation which we all felt when 
learning that we had been given 
Accreditation status for 3 years has 
now moved aside whilst we study 
our recommendations and realise 
that the hard work is only just 
beginning. 

The teamwork and commitment 
which was put in achieving 
Accreditation by all the staff 
certainly paid off and everyone 
should be commended for their 
valuable efforts. I think it was our 
unity and our ability to work well 
together at all levels that impressed 
the Accreditors the most. 

During the past 12 months we 
said goodbye to our first graduate 
of our graduate nurse program. 
Debbie Whitehead was regarded as 
a valuable member of our staff and 
we were sorry when her 12 months 
came to an end. We certainly wish 
her all the best for her future. 

June Voigt (EN) left the hospital 
during the last 12 months and we 
also lost the nursing services of 
Heather Fergusson (EN) when she 
moved on to being co-ordinator of 
the Lakes Hostel 

New staff to our hospital 
include Janet Goodwin (EN) and 
Leeanne Thomson (EN) so we 
welcome them. 

Once again I wish to sincerely 
thank all of the staff for making the 
Edenhope Hospital such a lovely 
place to work and always 
maintaining a high standard of 
care which is very much 
appreciated by families and 
patients. 

Meredith Finnigan 
Acute Charge Nurse 

Meredith Finnigan 
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Department 
Reports 

NURSING HOME 

Under Sandra's guidance this 
year has seen the long worked for 
state of Accreditation being 
achieved. I am sure the hours of 
work that has gone into achieving 
this high level of good service to 
the public will be ongoing. 

We now have the services of a 
joint diversional therapist - PCA to 
assist us each afternoon with the 
care of the frail elderly, thank you 
Marie and Chris. 

New equipment obtained 
during the past 12 months include 
Wongara Hydraulic patient lifter 
and several low chairs for staff to 
use during resident feeding. 

Donations from relatives include 
framed prints and two water comfort 
tilt tub chairs. The Ladies Auxiliary 
have kindly donated funds to 
purchase a new shower chair and a 
superdown comfort mattress. 

I would like to thank the "blue 
girls" for their team approach to 
work, the environmental services 
staff, in particular Betty, who is 
always there to lend a hand. The 
maintenance crew for their quick 
repair requests and Suzie and the 
office staff who are never too busy to 
stop and help in any way. 

Dawn Clifton 
Charge Nurse - Bade Wing 

Dawn Clifton with residents 
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COMMUNITY HEALTH 

Accreditation of the hospital 
facilities dominated the earlier part 
of the year. Community Health 
continues to focus on the education 
of health issues effecting people in 
our community. It was very 
pleasing to receive a 
commendation by the surveyors for 
the community education programs 
in place. 

During Healthy Bones Week this 
year we held weight bearing 
exercise classes followed by a high 
calcium lunch and a talk on ways 
to include more calcium into our 
eating habits. So our bones are at 
peak density by the time we are 
thirty. This talk was also given to 
the years 9 and 10 at the Edenhope 
College. 

In conjunction with the Apsley 
VFF a day of West Wimmera 
Women Building Community Spirit 
was held in Edenhope with a focus 
on Health, Personal Development 
and Business issues. The evaluation 
of the day was very positive with 
all asking that we offer it again. 

Hostel 

A great deal of the time was 
spent assessing residents for the 

hostel and recognising the special 
needs of themselves and their 
families. It was wonderful for them 
to have time to settle in and get to 
know each other quietly. 

Ongoing Focus 

Our physical wellbeing is 
enhanced with regular exercise 
classes. They are run on a regular 
basis for varying fitness levels. 
Chair based exercises are offered in 
Day Centre. 

The hospital bus continues to 
take women to Horsham for breast 
screening. The bus also goes to the 
Blood Bank four times a year. 

Medication and nutrition classes 
are also held. 

Sun spot clinics are offered in 
the evening to enable all to 
participate. 

Regular Pap Smears are 
encouraged and women are given 
the choice of visiting their GP or 
attending a special Pap Smear 
clinic with a female doctor. 

The overnight trips are very 
popular and beneficial and we 
have been to Robe and Halls Gap. 

Pauline Kelly 
Community Health Nurse 

Page 21 

Department 

Reports 



Department 
Reports 

PHYSIOTHERAPY 

REPORT 

This year has seen a variety of 
faces wearing the physiotherapy 
hat in Edenhope. Lynne Kruger and 
Belinda Matthews. familiar faces to 
Edenhope have passed the hand 
ball to new graduates Peter Guerra 
and Marize Knower. 

The department has continued 
to provide physiotherapy services 
for inpatients, outpatients and 
nursing home clients and have 
treated a variety of conditions from 
chest infections and stroke 
rehabilitation to low back pain , 
aching necks and sporting injuries. 

Along with the rest of the 
hospital the physiotherapy 
department has successfully 
undergone accreditation. The 
forthcoming year is full of surprises 
and we are looking forward to 
beginning a day centre exercise 
group and plans to purchase a 
treadmill for the department are 
underway. Our aim is to help keep 
clients on the move striving for 
excellence in assessment and 
treatment of musculoskeletal, 
neurological and cardiothoracic 
conditions. 

Marize Knower 
Physiotherapist 

Marze Knower 
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DISTRICT NURSE 

This year in District Nursing has 
been as always busy and 
productive. 

We have 43 clients for the year, 
did 3531 visits and drove 9118 
kms. This averages to 294 visits 
months/69 week and 759 kms 
month/175 week. 

We have covered a large area 
this year. with visits to Langkoop 
and Ullswater as well as our 
regular visits to the Apsley and 
Edenhope area. 

We have provided care and 
assistance with showering, 
dressings to wounds. and 
assistance with medication either 
by direct administration or by the 
fill ing of dosettes. We also do 
regular blood pressure checks and 
monitoring of blood sugar levels. 
We have also continued to offer 
palliative care with the assistance 
of Anne Hayes and the Horsham 
Hospice 

Arnise Cornish has joined us 
this year on a casual basis and has 
become a valuable member of our 
team. 

This year has seen the 
introduction of discharge planning 
meetings which have proved a 
valuable tool in offering the most 
appropriate care when clients are 
discharged from hospital. 

Our Home Files are now in 
most homes and provide better 
communication and continuity of 
care between doctors. district 
nurses and hospital staff and all 
the health care team. 

Accreditation was achieved by 
the hospital this year and we must 
now work to continue to achieve a 
standard of excellence in our care 
of the community . 

During this year we have 
worked closely with Sandra Hinch. 
Director of Nursing; Meredith 
Finnigan . Charge Nurse and Acting 
Director of Nursing:; Pauline Kelly, 
Community Health Nurse; Elwyn 
Cameron, Day Care Centre; as well 
as all the hospital staff to maintain 
a high standard of care to our 
clients. We have also worked closely 
with Gwen Edgar of West Wimmera 
Shire Council and our two doctors. 
Dr. Phil Dover and Dr. Ron Bade. 
we have attended regular District 
Nursing meetings. HACC meetings 
and HACC education days. 

We are again looking forward to 
the year ahead which will see us 
move to our new office. begin using 
the new Care Planner computer to 
its maximum and continuing to 
offer home health care to the 
community. 

Jenny Ackland 
Gwen Hannaford 

District Nurses 

Jenny Ackland 
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Reports 

Ellwyn Cameron 

DAY CARE CENTRE 

1996/97 has been a great 
achievement with the Hospital 
gaining Accreditation, The Lakes 
Hostel and the Kitchen and 
Laundry facilities up and running. 
Plus the new Adult Day 
Centre/Allied Health facility almost 
completed. I would like to 
acknowledge everyone involved in 
the advancement within this 
hospital 

Our department has had a busy 
year and we all look forward with 
enthusiasm to moving into our new 
establishment. 

Following last years survey on 
needs of older men in the 
community fortnightly mens groups 
are held with varying activities. 
Exercises using the new gym 
equipment. a woodwork project 
with Bernie Saw at the helm. 
luncheons and general get 
togethers are enjoyed by gradual 
increasing numbers. 

Craft, games, bus trips, 
educational days have all been 
enjoyed and we all look forward to 

bigger and better in our new 
centre. 

Three days were thoroughly 
enjoyed by all at Port Fairy. 

I have found the bi-monthly co 
ordinators meetings invaluable 
from these interactions between 
Day Centres have occured, eg. Irish 
Christmas Luncheon at Serviceton, 
Sports Day at Bordertown, 
enjoyable educational days at 
Harrow, Christmas shopping on 
Saturdays in conjunction with 
visiting museums, movies and 
luncheons with the next gathering 
to be in Edenhope. 
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The Nursing Home have gained 
from the addition of Diversional 
Therapists, Marie and Chris with 
residents being able to access trips 
to the hairdresser. shops, walks, 
drives or bus etc. Money was raised 
and miniature roses planted in the 
Nursing Home garden. 

We hosted a Music Therapy 
Seminar for 60 staff and volunteers 
from surrounding areas, a very 
enjoyable Melbourne Cup luncheon 
and Christmas party which was 
very competently held and catered 
for by the Golf Club , thank you. and 
the list goes on. 

I would like to acknowledge the 
dedication and commitment my 
staff Estelle, Chris, Marie and Kay 
(from Goroke) give and thank my 
wil l ing band of volunteers for their 
untiring support in times of 
financial cutbacks, their services 
are invaluable. 

Congratulations Nadia on a well 
earned position in the new Hostel 
'we all miss you) and welcome to 
Jane Schuller and Julie Goldberg to 
Day Centre and Hostel relieving 
staff. 

My staff are to be commended 
on their dedication to increasing 
their education thus enhancing the 
qua l i ty of the service we can offer 
our clients/residents 

1 thank all departments for the ir 
co-operation and support 
throughout the year and look 
forward to exciting future 
development in our new 
establishment. 

Elwyn Cameron 
Day Centre Co-ordinator 



ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES 

Congratulations everyone. what 
an achievement and thanks to the 
Chief Executive Officer for his 
confidence in us making 
Accreditation a reality. 

After the small army of 
builders. plumbers. electricians, 
inspectors, apprentices, carpet 
layers, the experts and non experts. 
had left and the dust had settled 
(so to speak) we were lef t with a 
very impressive state of the art 
cook chill kitchen. a well designed 
hostel and modern new laundry 
and lots of work cleaning up. 

During the building/ 
renovations we continued with 
Accreditation with reference to the 
EQUIP manual which in turn 
meant lots of work regarding 
documentation and policy mak ing. 

The Quality Assurance Program 
created an interest and staff were 
willing to participate in these 
activities. Some policy and 
procedures have been re-written as 
a result of the outcome of those 
activities . With the laundry up and 
running and the hostel fill ing, the 
need for more staff became 
evident 

The day to day running of the 
laundry is in the capable hands of 
Neil Pahl. Neil attended seminars 
on "Infection Control in Laundrys" 
and has also had hands on training 
in the use of laundry equipment. 
Other staff have also been retrained 
through the training program in the 
day to day operation of the laundry 
procedures. 

Must mention the Murray to 
Moyne team. Great effort by all 
concerned. A special "well done" 
must go to Neil Pahl who rode all 
the way, 525 km. Just how many 
ways are there to raise money? 

Now for the thank yous. Firstly 
Sandra Hinch for her fortitude and 
endurance in the pursuit of gaining 
Accreditation. The office staff for 
their dedication and tireless efforts 
and the ability to work under 
pressure. 

Environmental Services staff 
thanks guys" for having faith in me 
and the nursing, outdoor and day 
centre staff for their co-operation in 
making things happen. 

Deanna Field 
Environmental Services Supervisor 

Department 
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CATERING 

DEPARTMENT 

Well we can finally say goodbye 
to the old kitchen. 

We made it through all the 
renovation work. put up with the 
noise, dust. workers constantly 
interrupting our duties, causing 
power cuts, cutting off our water 
and generally making nuisances of 
themselves. 

During renovation we provided 
meals from a kitchen three metres 
by seven metres with only one 
bench. and oven and range. one 
sink and a three door fndge. If we lit 
a fire on the floor you would swear 
it was a camp kitchen. It was 
extremely temporary to say the 
least. 

After what seemed like an 
eternity we moved into our bright. 
modern. easy to clean. state of the 
art kitchen, a kitchen to rival any in 
hospitals in Victoria. 

During the transfer from old to 
new the staff have been 
tremendous. they helped develop 
new work routines and schedules 
and have been the backbone of the 
whole operation Any problems 
arising with the new system were 
discussed by staff and fixed as 

quickly as possible and, after only 
six short months the new kitchen 
with our cook chill operation . is 
working very efficiently. Client 
acceptance of this new system is 
excellent with much favourable 
feedback from patients and staff. 

Also the other highlight of the 
last year must be our hospital 
becoming accredited. This huge 
undertaking of documentation and 
Quality Assurance has paid off in 
the best way possible. We now 
have the proof that our hospital is 
on a par with any in Australia. 
providing optimum care to all our 
clients. 

Thank you to all staff associated 
with food services for their hard 
work and patience over the past 
year. Our work environment was 
disrupted, destroyed. altered and 
transformed but we managed. as a 
team to cope with all the changes. 
and keep our sanity. I am sure the 
next 12 months will see us 
consolidate our new work practices 
and enable the Food Services 
Department to contmue to provide 
the best meals possible to our 
clients. 

Andrew Saunders 
Catering Officer 
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Andrew Saunders 
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MAINTENANCE/ 

GARDEN & GROUNDS 

Exhaustion and satisfaction, in 
that order - were the two most 
dominant emotions experienced by 
this department over a very hectic 
past year. The culmination of two 
building projects, the 
commencement of another and 
most importantly all the lead up 
work towards the February 
meeting with the Accreditation 
Surveyors in association with the 
departments regular activites has 
ensured that all resources were 
used to their utmost and at times 
stretched to the limit. 

Accreditation was certainly the 
biggest task faced this year and 
although a great amount of 
satisfaction was felt when the 
hospital achieved Accreditation 
standard, it was also a reminder 
that the job is only partially 
completed as several areas still 
remain unresolved and need to be 
attended to before this department 
can feel satisfied that they have 
reached the standards required. 
Prior to the survey date many areas 
within the hospital received 
upgrades through painting. 
cupboard installation and floor 
covering replacement. These areas 
included theatre, casualty, x-ray. 
administration, CSSD, penthouse 
and several store rooms. The 
evolvement of a maintenance 
policy and procedure manual in 
conjunction with the formation of 
an equipment inventory and a 
review of relevant Australian 
Standards has ensured that the 
development of a preventative 
maintenance program is nearing 
completion and e l iminat ing the 
previous ad hoe nature of hospital 
maintenance. 

With the completion of the 
Lakes Hostel and the 
Kitchen/Laundry development of 
all staff were involved in the 
location of several items of 
equ ipment in both areas and had 
the problem of overcoming several 
small teething problems that arose 
with the installation of new 
equipment. With residents moving 
into the lakes Hostel. staff were 

acting furniture removalists for 
many appreciative residents. 

As was the case with the 
aforementioned building projects 
staff were involved with the initial 
setting up of the Edenhope 
Community Centre. building in 
terms of pipe and cable location 
and site preparation in relation to 
fence and tree removal. Prior to the 
new buildings coming into service 
a new power supply and main 
switchboard were installed to cope 
with the increased usuage and 
allow for staggered stage start up 
to alleviate any possible damage 
on the emergency generator in 
case of a power supply failure. 

On the gardening scene. 
outside of Accreditation, most 
efforts have been directed toward 
landscaping around the Lakes 
Hostel. To assist in this extensive 
landscaping project two new 
personnel. Keith Rodgers and 
Bradley Colgate. were hired under 
the Job Start Program and 
commenced work in early 
December. Initially Keith and 
Bradley alternated between 
landscaping and Accreditation 
duties but with the completion of 
Accreditation in February. 
concentrated solely on work 
around the Lakes Hostel, and are 
to be congratulated on their efforts 
in having most of the major 
components of the landscaping 
completed prior to residents 
moving in. Bradley ceased 
employment in May, while Keith 
was retained until September 
when only a few items. boundary 
fence. roadworks and carparking 
were left to be completed. With the 
Hostel now almost full. all 
residents are enjoying the fruits of 
their extensive labours. 
Unfortunately with all efforts 
concentrated on the Hostel 
landscaping and Accreditation 
over the last year, the remainder of 
the facility grounds were largely 
ignored and suffered greatly with 
only some minor maintenance 
activities such as mowing and 
weeding carried out. 

The integration of a new 
paging system has proven to be of 
a great benefit to the complex as it 
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has enabled the administration 
staff to maintain contact when the 
location of staff is not readily 
identifiable. ensuring a prompt 
delivery and response to all 
messages as required. 

Looking forward we see the 
completion of the last of the 
building projects which will enable 
staff to devote more energies 
toward regular activities and 
concentrate on several issues raised 
by the Accreditation Surveyors 
ensuring their resolvement and 
continue to improve on the high 
standards already achieved by this 
department. which is the basis 
around which Accreditation 
revolves. 

It seems that as each year 
passes the level of activities within 
the department increased to the 

point where the light at the end of 
the tunnel almost disappears. 
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However, as time passes the light 
gets larger and brighter as the co 
operation with the organisations 
departments enables all challenges 
to be handled promptly and 
competently. 

Many thanks to all staff for their 
patience and co-operation . your 
support has given this department 
great confidence in taking the 
many challenges that no doubt lay 
ahead with the continued 
evolvement of the hospital 
organisation. 

Andrew Lloyd 
Maintenance 

Darren Young 
Gardens and Grounds 
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HOSTEL SUPERVISORS 

REPORT  

March - June 1997 

How lucky are the Residents 
and Staff of the Lakes Hostel! With 
Sandra and Tim at the helm. and 
myself with three wonderful staff. 
Janine. Nadia and Kerry. this 
wonderful building opened in 
March with six permanent 
residents from Edenhope and 
surrounding districts. By the end of 
June most of our rooms were filled. 
The "Baby" of our clients is 75 and 
we have two aged 95 years. with 
one of these enjoying indoor bowls 
twice a week, usually. We have a 
fantastic view of the Lake, and its 
wildlife provides much 
entertainment as many of the 
residents walk to the shoreline 
daily and feed the birds. 

There have been several 
outings to other Senior Citizens 
C lub. Day Centre and two coffee 
parties for the Auxiliary and Cancer 
Appeal. 

The Physiotherapist has 
attended several residents and Mr. 
Liddy has tested all residents' eyes 
and we have regular visits from 
Colleen and Heather from the 
V isually Impaired Society. Dr. 
Dover delivers his usual helpful, 
professional services too. We have 
had full support from the Office 
Staff and Hospital girls too. Thank 
you all. 

The C.W.A. Ladies bought their 
toll painting to us and several 
joined in. Many clubs and 
individuals have made great 
presentations to us. and we are 
very grateful to them all. Grade 
one children have been to read 
and sing to us and Dan West 
played his accordian. which were 
most enjoyable treats. 

Heather Irving is our chief 
volunteer cook every Thursday and 
the delicious cakes and puddings 
she turns out are a credit to her. 

Darren and Keith have 
provided many hours of discussion 
and "entertainment" as they busily 
landscaped . and Andrew Lloyd has 
been kept on his toes. decorating 
the rooms with the many treasures 
and pictures brought from home. 
The extra meals Andrew Saunders 
has provided have been done in a 
caring way in keeping with the 
elderly's tastes. 

So though we started off at a 
relaxed pace. life has got very 
busy. but still enjoyable. thanks to 
so many different people. 
especially Tim who has shown a 
personal interest and thankfully 
deals so well with the financial 
side of the Hostel. 

Heather Fergusson 
Hostel Supervisor 
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ADMINISTRATION 

REPORT 

This past year has had so much 
happening and so much achieved, 
that the year has passed in a flash. 
Accreditation status has been 
attained. valid for the next three 
years and two of the three major 
building projects have been 
completed. Nearly everything that 
happens in this organisation 
involves the administration staff in 
some ways, whether it be 
maintaining patient records. 
processing the updates to policies 
and procedures, processing the 
accounts. minuting the numerous 
meetings. setting up the 
administative side of the hostel 
operations or preparing the 
financial reports, we are involved. 
Consequently, it has been a huge 
year for us. 

Accreditation has no doubt been 
the biggest item on our agenda. 
and what a fantastic reward for the 
enormous effort put in by the entire 
staff. was the certification for a 
three year period t would say that 
everything that was done in the 
pursuit of accreditation was 
processed in some way through our 
office. t must particularly thank 
Mandy Pretlove who logged many 
many hours processing all the 
updates to the policy manuals and 
putting all the finishing touches to 
the completed manuals. The agony 
of the process and the joy at the 
finished product was jokingly 
likened to the labour and birth of a 
child! 

There is no doubt that the 
accreditation process has 
enlightened many staff and 
departments to the work that is 
done by others and there has been 
a general aura of respect between 
departments This organisation has 
always operated as a close kn it 
team and the accreditation process 
has added to this strength. On 
behalf of the administrative team. I 
would like to sincerely thank our 
Director of Nursing come 
Accreditation Officer - Sandra 
Hinch for her guidance, support 
and sheer hard work throughout 
the year 
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In terms of new equipment. the 
major item that has effected 
administration has been the 
installation of the new paging 
system. This system is operated via 
a computer terminal and messages 
can be relayed to anyone carrying 
one of the 20 personal pagers. This 
is an extremely effective and 
timesaving communication tool. 
The system is utilised by nursing 
staff outside office hours to page 
Doctors and on-call staff as the 
system has a range of three 
kilometres. 

Sharon Burns joined our team in 
August 1996 to provide holiday and 
sick leave relief cover which was a 
real bonus. Sharon has fitted in 
really well with her br ight and 
cheery nature. 

In April this year Chris Mulraney 
resigned from our team to take up 
a business venture in Allansford 
with her husband and family. We 
were very sad to lose Chris after 
nine years at the hospital but we 
wish her every success in her new 
project. Chris's position was 
reviewed and a fulltime position 
created to cope with the extra 
demands of our expanded 
organisation. We were very 
fortunate to attain the services of 
Sheree Welch, formerly employed 
in the Finance Department of 
Hamilton Base, for this new 
position. Sheree's experience in 
hospital administration has 
enabled her to become a valued 
member of the small admin. team 
in a very short time We welcome 
you Sheree 

Staff changes also occured in 
medical records. a service which is 
provided to us by the West 
Wimmera Health Service. Paula 
Ayrton replaced G igi Schneider who 
took up a position at Hamilton Base 
Hospital and the Paula resigned to 
take up a position in Melbourne 
Kaye Borgelt has returned. a little 
earlier than anticipated , from 
maternity leave. and her cheery 
disposition is welcomed on her 
fortnightly visits to Edenhope. All in 
all it has been a very productive 
year for the Administration 
Department. I  would like to 
sincerely thank Mandy. Chris 



Sheree and Sharon. whose 
combined commitment to this team 
is evidenced by the several 
commendations to the office staff 
printed in the accreditation report. 
These commendations were for; 
our commitment to quality 
improvement. our pro-active 
approach to management 
information systems. the efforts 
made in maintaining a well 

ordered medical record and in 
general for our multiskilling. Added 
to this was a very successful or 
"clean" audit as it is often termed, 
which was conducted by our 
auditors Callaway & Hecht of 
Melbourne. Well done team. 

Suzie Cranage 
Administration Services Supervisor 
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Flo Ryan 

LADIES AUXILIARY 

REPORT 

With pleasure I present the 
Annual Report 0f 1996/97 and to 

thank all members and supporters 
for another successful year. 

we have had a most enjoyable 
dinner at the hotel in September. In 
November we have our Annual 
Garden Walk in Wannon Avenue 
and Lake Street. I congratulate and 
thank all garden donors and 
especially PMarg and Don Marner 
for their gardens and home for the 
afternoon tea and stall. 

Also the Golf Club for the 
opportunity for our golf day. Not 
many players - hope for a better 
day this year. A great day at the 
races - thank you to the Race Club. 
Also to the Bowling Club for the 
night. 

Another day at the Henley - I 
think a good day was had by all. 

A stall at the Gourmet Day was 
most successful. A most enjoyable 

coffee morning was held at Frankie 
Baxters and of course a few dollars 
in our box. thank you Frankie. 

Thank you to John O'Connor and 
Marg Burns for the doll and cot we 
raffled and to Josie Campbell for her 
donation and for the donation to buy 
the barbecue and Glad Conboy for 
the umbrella we are offering at the 
moment also Nessie Wheeler for the 
sale of bulbs. 

It is most rewarding to see the 
Hostel open and being enjoyed by 
all in which we have donated $9,000 

and $285.00 to the hospital 

In closing I must say a special 
thank you to Joyce and Dawn. our 
Secretaries and Marg our Treasurer. 

We are hoping for new members. 
those interested. males most 
welcome. 

Flo Ryan 
President Ladies Auxiliary 

LR Back Row. Joyce Heffernan, Marg Burns. Barbara McCarthy. 
Audry Loft, Gail Mahney. Loraine Harkness 

Front. Flo Ryan, Dawn Robinson. Fairlie Pettit, Sandra Hinch 
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VISITING MEDICAL 

OFFICERS REPORT 

The last twelve months has 
been one of many changes and 
achievements. Probably the most 
significant was the retirement of Dr. 
Ron Bade from active General 
Practice in July this year. after more 
than 40 years of service to the 
Eden hope community. He will 
however. be continuing his 
participation on the Hospital Board 
and continue as a Visiting Medical 
Officer in a limited surgical role 
and occasional relief cover for Dr. 
Phil Dover. 

The opening of the Lakes Hostel 
and soon to be opened Day 
Centre/Community Health Centre 
completes a full range of aged care 
facilities in Edenhope. Acute care 
facilities are stil l the core function 
of the hospital and I look forward to 
the further upgrading of our 
theatre, midwifery and 
emergency/outpatient facilties (not 
forgetting administration) in the not 
too distant future. 

The Edenhope Hospital 
contmues to provide as broad as 
possible range of acute medical 

care. Our surgical capabilities have 
been extended with visits from Mr. 
John Williams. specialist surgeon 
from Hamilton. Chemotherapy for 
cancer patients. in consultation 
with Oncology specialists from 
Melbourne has continued on a 
limited basis. This service has been 
much appreciated by the patients. 

All the staff of the Hospital must 
be congratulated for the 
achievement of attaining Hospital 
Accreditation earlier this year. This 
involved an immense amount of 
time and work by everybody in the 
Hospital. and is indicative of the 
quality of services provided by 
every department. It is an 
expression of the great commradre 
and high staff moral. that makes 
this Hospital such a pleasant place 
to work. Particular praise must go 
to Director of Nursing. Sandra 
Hinch who steered us through this 
exhaustive process. 

I again thank all the staff of this 
great little Hospital for their 
support during a busy year. 

Dr. Phil Dover 
Visiting Medical Officer 
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MURRAY TO MOYNE 

CYCLE RELAY 

What a fantastic year for the 
Murray to Moyne Team with a 
record amount raised of $13.370 
and Neil Pahl being the first person 
from Edenhope to complete the full 
520 kilometres. 

The focus of the Murray to 
PMoyne Cycle Team has always 
been first and foremost on 
fundraising and this was very 
clearly evidenced by this year's 
massive tally 0f $13.370. A major 
fund raiser this year was the Talent 
Quest held in August. It raised over 
$2,000 and was a fantastic night's 
entertainment for the community. 
The rest of the money was raised 
through direct sponsorship of riders 
by the community and local 
business. and through fundraising 
ventures such as raffles. "Chicken 
& Champagne" boat trips on Lake 
Wallace and Lake Charlegrark, 
bulb sales and car washing to 
name a few. 
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This year our fundraising was 
further enhanced by the efforts of 
Neil Pahl who managed to ride the 
whole way from Mildura to Port 
fairy. 520 kms in 23 hours. and 
raise over $2,000 in the process 
What an amaz ing effort . . . . .Well 
done Neil! 

Once again the weather for the 
actual relay held on 26th and 27th 
of April. was superb. sunny and 
with a tail wind for the home 
straight, Hamilton to Port Fairy. 
... it is hard not to think that the 
late Graeme Woodruff. in whose 
name the relay is run . has got 
something to do with this 
exceptional run of great weather. 

Members of the team this year 
were; Pauline Kelly, Lesley Payne, 
Phil Dover. Andrew Lloyd. Neil 
Pahl, John Jenkins. Jim Farran. Sue 
Lawrence, Suzie Cranage ,  Darren 

Y o u n g ,  P a u l  Lawrence, M a r g a r e t  
Scanlon.  Mick Cummins.  Deanna 
field and Frank Folino 

Pauline Kelly 



Total Total 
1996/97 1995/96 

$ $ 

137.074 435.447 
35.240 51.697 

2 ,757.414 2.767.983 
26.884 30.636 

17,809 
216.494 146.317 

3,173,106 3,449,889 

1.860.901 1.704,345 
133.041 127.636 
615.239 618.132 
140.901 110,965 
115 429 106 955 

2,865,511 2,668,033 

307,595 781,856 

3,080,492 2,298,636 

3,338,087 3,080,492 

[8] 
[9] 

[2] 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 

[10] 

Operating Surplus for the year 

Retained Earnings at July 1 
-- ---��- � - --- ------ 

Retained Earnings at 30 June 
s  or  

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital 
Revenue and Expense Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 1997 

Notes 

Total Revenue 

Less Operating Exenses 
Employee Entitlements 
Superannuation 
Supplies and Consumables 
Depreciation 
Other _ __ _ __ -� _ 
Total Expenses 

Operating Revenue 

Grants from Other Governments 
Investment Income 
Sale of Goods and Services 
Net Revenue from Disposal of Physical Assets 
Net Value of Assets Recieved Free of Charge 
Other 
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Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital 
Balance Sheet as at 30 June 1997 

Equity 
Retained Earnings 

Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 
Payables 
Employee Entitlements 
Monies held in Trust 

- --� -  

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Employee Entitlements 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 
cash at bank and on hand 
Inventory 
Prepayments 
Receivables 
Investments 
Montes held in trust 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Land 
Buildings 
Plant and Equipment 
Furniture and Fittings 
Other 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

[19] 
[14] 

[15] 
[16] 
[13] 

[18 

[18] 
[18] 
[18] 
[17] 

29,666 186.119 
24.619 5.635 

3.161 1 .785 
93,170 82.265 

1 ,006.115 
121.786 7.440 

272,402 1,289,359 

235,000 235,000 
2,822.857 1.493,440 

602.064 337.323 
95.200 40.683 

242.164 523.765 

3,997,285 2,630,211 

4,269,687 3,919,570 

Notes Total Total 
1996 1995 

$ s 

[28] 3,388.087 3,080.492 

3,388,087 3,080,492 
---�- - - - -  

[ll] 182.470 328.788 
[12] 323.970 342.735 
[13] 121.786 7.440 

- --� 

628,226 678,963 

[12]  253,374 160.115 

253,374 160,115 
-- - - 

881,600 839,078 

4,269,687 3,919,570 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital 
Statement of Cash flows for the year Ended 30 June 1997 

Notes Total 
1996/97 

$ 

Inflows/ 
(outflows) 

Total 
1995/96 

$ 

Inflows/ 
(Outflows) 

(2,640,878) (2,427,694) 

(1 ,787.971)  (1,625.167)  
(133.201) (122,771)  
(631.361)  (604.925) 

(88.345) (74,831) 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Receipts 
Grants from other Governments 
Sale of Goods and Services 
Interest Recieved 
Other 
-- -- -  .  

Total Receipts 

Payments 
Employee Entitlements 
Superannuation 
Supplies and Consumables 
Other 

Total Payments 

137,074 
2.774.126 

39.237 
194.457 

. 

3,144,894 

432,703 
2,764,400 

49.668 
167.147 

3,413,918 

· -  -  - - - -  .  -------------- 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities [20] 504,016 986,224 

(459,365)  
93,140 

(593,197)  

(1.739.,074) 
72,490 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held 

1.006,115 
. .  .  -  -  .  ··------------------ 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (660,469) (959,422) 

(156,453) 26,802 

Cash Flows from investing Activities 
Purchases of Property. Plant and Equipment 
Proceeds from Sale of Properties. Plant and Equipment 
Purchase of Investments 
Proceeds from Sale of Investments 

Cash at 1 July 
- - -  -- - 

Cash at 30 June 

186.119 159.317 
--��------- 

[ l 9] 29,666 186,119 

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Page 39 



Notes 

Notes to and Forming 
Part of the Financial 
Statements for the 
Year Ended 
30 June 1997 

Note I: Statement of 
Accounting Policies 

The general purpose Financial 
Statements of the Hospital have 
been prepared in accordance with 
the provisions of the Financial 
Management Act 1994. These 
requirements incorporate relevant 
accounting standards issued jointly 
by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia and the 
Australian Society of Certified 
Practising Accounts. 

(a) Accrual Basis 

Except where otherwise stated, 
these financial statements have 
been prepared on the accrual basis 
whereby revenue and expenses are 
recognised when they are earned 
or incurred. and are brought to 
account in the period to which they 
relate. 

(b) Historical Cost Basis 

The financial statements have 
been prepared on the historical cost 
basis whereby assets are recorded 
at purchase price plus costs 
incidental to their acquisition and 
do not take into account changing 
money values nor the current cost 
of non-current assets (unless 
specifically stated). 

(c) Rounding Off 

All amounts shown in the 
financial statements are expressed 
to the nearest dollar. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are valued at cost 
and are classified between current 
and non-current assets based on 
the Hospital Board of 
Managements intention at balance 
date with respect to the timing of 
disposal of each investment. 
Interest revenue from investments 
is brought to account when it is 
earned. 

(e) Depreciation 

Assets with a cost in excess of 
$1.000 are capitalised and 
depreciation has been provided on 
depreciable assets so as to allocate 
their cost (or valuation) over their 
estimated useful lives using the 
straight line method. This depre  
ciation charge is not funded by the 
Department of Human Services 
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(f) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the 
lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is determined 
principally by the first-in. first-out 
method. 

(g) Employee Entitlements 

Are based on pay rates current 
at balance date. On costs such as 
Work Cover and superannuation are 
included in the calcu lat ion of leave 
provisions. 

Long Service Leave 

The provision for long service 
leave is determined in accordance 
with Accounting Standard AAS30. 
Generally, the entitlement under 
various awards becomes payable 
upon completion of ten years· 
service. The proportion of long 
service leave estimated to be 
payable within the next financial 
year is a current l iab i l ity. The 
balance of the provision is 
classified as a non-current liability 
measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows 
arising from employee's services to 
date. 

Wages and Salaries, Annual 
Leave and Accrued Days Off 

Liabilities for wages and 
salaries. annual leave and accrued 
days off are recognised and are 
measured as the amount unpaid at 
the reporting date in respect of 
employee's services up to that date. 

(h) Nursing Home 

The Edenhope Nursing Home is 
controlled by a separate Committee 
of Management and is substantially 
funded from Commonwealth 
bedday subsidies. 

The Nursing Home operations 
are an integral part of the Hospital 
and share it's resources 
Consequently the assets and 
liab ilities have not been segregated 
in the Balance Sheet The results of 
the two operations have been 
segregated based on actual 
revenue earned and expenditure 
incurred by each operation. 

(i) Donations 

Donations are recognised as 
revenue when the cash is received. 



(j) Fund Accounting 

The Hospital operates on a fund 
accounting basis and maintains 
two funds; Operating and Capital 
The Hospitals Capital fund includes 
unspent capital donations and 
receipts from fundraising activities 
conducted solely in respect of these 
funds. 

() Services Supported By 

Health Services Agreement 
and Services Supported by 
Hospital and Community 
Initiatives 

The Activities classified as 
Services Supported by Health 
Services Agreement are 

substantially funded by the 
Department of Health and 
Community Services while Hospital 
and Community Initiatives are 
funded by the Hospitals own 
activities or local initiatives. 

(I) Comparative Information 

Where necessary, the figures 
from the previous year have been 
classified to facilitate comparisons. 

Pae 4 1  

Notes 

Notes to and Forming 
Part of the Financial 
Statements for the 
Year Ended 
30 June 1997 



Note 2: Grants from Other Governments 

Grants Received From The Commonwealth Government 

Operating 
Commonwealth Dental Program 

Sub-Total 

1996/97 
$ 

1995/96 
s 

17.291 

17,291 

Capital 
Hostel Capital Works Grant 

Sub-Total 

137.074 
-------------- 

137,074 418,156 
418.156 

Total 

Note 3: Investment Income 

Interest 

Note 4: Sale of Goods and Services 

Department of Human Services Operating Grants 

Department of Human Services Other Grants 
- Service Plan 
Capital Grants 

Sub-Total 

137,074 

1996/97 
$ 

1996/97 
$ 

1,724.,956 

6.660 
118.107 

1,849,723 

435,447 

1995/96 
s 

51.697 

1995/96 
$ 

1.664.696 

182.150 

1,846,846 

30.249 
874,210 

16.,678 

2,767,983 
---- � 

Indirect Contributions From Department of Human Services 32,848 
Patient Fees 861,987 
District Nursing Fees 12,856 

-�-------------� 

Tota ===?757,414 

Grants are based on actual performance during the year under the Health Service Agreement. A 
provisional year end adjustment of $90.225 is accrued as a liability in the Balance Sheet 

Note 5: Net Revenues From Disposal of Physical Assets 

During the reported period the hospital sold three motor vehicles 

Proceeds from Disposal 
Less: Written-Down Value of Assets Sold 

Net Revenues from Disposal of Physical Assets 

1996/97 
$ 

72.490 
(5.606) 

26,884 

1995/96 
$ 

93.140 
(62.504) 

30,636 

Note 6: Assets Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration 

1996/97 
$ 

During the reporting period, the fair value of assets received free of charge 
was as follows: 

Plant and Equipment 
L 

1995/96 
$ 

17,809 

The equipment in the 1995/96 Financial year was received from the Monash University centre for Rural 
Health 
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1996/97 1995/96 
$ $ 

2.387 2.387 
25.193 25,116 
44.042 57.439 

71,622 84,942 

35.361 24.104 
37.095 

72.416 37.271 

144,872 61,375 

216,494 146,137 

1996/97 1995/96 
$ $ 

34.487 27.329 

13,435 8.593 
32,070 32,877 
15,661 13,038 
16.654 12.131 
17,267 9.798 
11.327 7.199 

140,901 110,965 

1996/97 1995/96 
$ $ 

77.281 69,731 
4.100 5.100 
1.200 1.875 

32.848 30.249 

115,429 106,955 

Note 23 
Note 24 

Maintenance 
Audit Expenses (Auditor General) 
Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Indirect Contributions from the Department of Human Se0Ice5 ""TY 
Total 

Note 10: Operating Expenses 

Note 9: Other Operating Expenses 

Buildings 
Plant and Equipment 

- Plant 
- Transport 
-Major Medical 
-Computers and Communication 
-Other Equipment 

Furniture and Fittings-. 
- - 

Total 

Note 8: Depreciation Expenses 

Total 

Sub-Total 

Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives 
Meals on Wheels/Other Meals 
Lakes Hostel 
Donations (Specific) 
- Capital hole?? 
Sub-Total 

Note 7: Other Operating Revenue 

Supported By Health Services Agreement 
Property and Rental Income 
Recoveries 
Abnormal Revenue 

Acute 
Care 

$ 

Aged 
Care 

$ 

Primary 
Care 

$ 

Other Total 
$ 1996/97 

$ 

Total 
1995/96 

$ 

Services Supported by 
Health Service Agreement 
Salaries and Wages 926.123 759,234 
Workcover 10.458 9.852 
Superannuation 71.951 56.978 
Fee for Service Medical Officers 121 .389 
Drug Supplies 34.695 3.683 
Medical and Surgical Supplies 24.922 3.030 
Food Supplies 25,530 43.733 
Domestic Services 23.979 25.062 
Repairs and Maintenance 51.640 20.470 
Patient Transport 22.701 
Administrative Expenses 77.350 48.133 
Audit Fees 2.296 1 .517 
Other 
-Indirect Contributions (DHS) 22.035 10.096 
- Light and Power 26,880 29,826 
- Medical Support Services 39.577 3 1 8 4  

Total Expenses 
Requiring Fund Outflows 1,481,526 1,014,798 

- - - - -  
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61.231 
648 

2,071 

217 
2.075 

8.280 
287 

717 

2.267 
15.659 

93,452 

1.746.588 1.609.397 
20,958 24.960 

131.000 127.636 
121.389 137.925 

38.378 50.561 
27.952 50.608 
69.263 54,385 
419.258 49.355 
74 . 1 8 5  6 9 . 7 3 1  

22.701 27.925 

1 3 3 , 7 6 3  1 1 8. 4 7 6  

4.,100 5.100 

32,848 30.249 

58.973 5 4 , 1 3 3  

58.420 60,789 

2,589,776 2,471,230 



Note 10 continued......... 

Add Operating Expenses not 
Requiring Fund Outflows 
Depreciation 
Long Service Leave 
Doubtful Debts 

Sub-Total 

Acute Aged Primary Other Total Total 
Care Care Care $ 1996/97 1995/96 

$ $ $ $ $ 

80,314 54,951 5,636 140,901 110,965 
30,738 16,434 3,440 50.612 69,988 

600 600 1,200 1.875 

111,652 71,985 9,076 192,713 182,828 

Services Supported by Hospital 
and Community Initiatives 
Salaries and Wages 
Workcover 
Superannuation 
Fee for service Medical Officers 
Drug Supplies 
Medical and Surgical Supplies 
Food Supplies 
Domestic Services 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Patient Transport 
Administrative Expenses 
Audit Fees 
Other 

Total Expenses Requiring 
Fund Outflows 

Add Operating Expenses not 
Requiring fund Outflows 
Depreciation 
Long Service Leave 
Doubtful Debts 

.   

Sub-Total 

- 38,834 

497 
2.041 

3.411 

3,411 

38,834 
497 

2.041 

3.411 

3,411 

13,975 

13,975 

. 21.704 21,704 
1,594 1,594 
3,097 3,097 

4,834 4,834 

7,010 7,010 

. 79,611 79,611 

Total Expenses 

Note 11: Payables 

1,593,178 1,086,783 102,528 83,022 2,865,511 2,668,033 

Trade Creditors 
Project Creditors 
Department of Human Services 
Accrued Expenses 

Total 

Note 12: Employee Entitlements 

Current 
Annua l Leave 
Accrued Days Off 
Accrued Salaries and Wages 
Long Service Leave 
--- - , . , . - - - � � - � - - -  --------- - -  ------------ 

Sub-Total Current 

Non-Current 

Long Service Leave 
------ � - -  - - - - - - � - - -  -- - - - - - - -  

Total Employee Entitlements 
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577,344 502,850 

Less than Total Total 
1 year 1997 1996 

$ $ 

76,790 76,790 73,928 
91.260 

90,225 90,225 47,800 
15,455 15,455 115,800 

182,470 182,470 328,788 

1996/97 1995/96 

$ $ 

212,667 186.933 
8 ,823 5,482 

67.480 56.383 
35.000 93.937 

- -  

323,970 342,735 
- - - - - - - - -  

253 .374 160,115 



Note 12 continued . 

The following assumptions were adopted in measuring present value: 

Salary On-Costs 10.00% 

Wage Inflation Rate 5.30% 

Bond Rate: 

Future Year 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Bond Rate 5.18 5 .51  5.92 6.18 6.42 6.85 6.81 

Future Year 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

Bond Rate 6.92 6 .96 7.03 7.08 7.11 7.11 7 .11 

Future Year 16 16+ 

Bond Rate 7 .11 7 . 1 1  

Note 13: Monies Held in Trust 

Patient Ponies held in Trust 
Refundable Entrance Fees 

Total Monies held in Trust 

Represented by: 
Cash at Bank - Patient Trust Account 
Cash at Bank - Entrance Fees 

- - - - - -  

Total cash at Bank 

Note 14: Inventory 

1996/97 

$ 

8.036 
113,750 

121,786 

8,036 
113.750 

121,786 

1996/97 

$ 

1995/96 

$ 

7.440 

7,440 

7.440 

7,440 

1995/96 

$ 

Pharmaceuticals 
Catering Supplies 
Domestic Supplies 
Medical and surgica l  Supplies 

�--- - -  

Total 

1 1 , 9 7 9  5,635 
3 ,071 
1.963 
7 ,606 

- - - � - - - -  - -  -  - - -  

24,619 5,635 

Due to a change in ordering policy in 1995/96. no significant stocks were held at any one time of catering. 
domestic or medical supplies. This policy was discontinued in 1996/97. 

Note 15:  Receivables 

Less than Total Total 
1 year 1997 1996 

$ $ 

Inter Hospital Debtors 5.223 5 ,223 
Trade Debtors 86,398 86.398 66 .808 
Accrued Investment Income 1 ,070 1.070 5 .067 
Accrued Revenue 
-Department of Human Services 1 .098 1.098 10 ,590 

Total 93,789 93,789 82,465 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 
Trade Debtors (619)  ( 6 1 9 )  (200)  

Total (619) (619)  (200) 

Net Debtors and Accrued Revenue 93,170 93,170 82,265 

Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Acute Inpatients 600 600 1 . 1 7 8  

Nursing Home 600 600 697 
---- - ---- ---- - -  -  

. .  

Total 1,200 1 ,200 1 ,875  
-- � - - -  --- -- ----- 
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Note 16: Investments 

Current 
Short Term Investment 

Total 

Analysed as follows: 

Australian Dollar Term Deposits 

Total 

Note 17: Other Assets 

Non-Current Assets 
Capital Works in Progress 

Total 

Total 
1997 

s 

1997 
s 

242.164 

242,164 

Total 
1996 

s 

1.006.115 

1,006,115 

1.006.115 

1,006,115 

1996 
s 

523.765 

523,765 

As at 30th June 1996. three capital works projects were in progress; an Aged Care Hostel. a major 
Kitchen and Laundry re-development and a new Adult Day Care Centre. As at 30th June 1997 both the 
Hostel and Kitchen/Laundry projects have been completed. The Adult Day Care Centre is estimated to be 
completed in September 1997 

Note 18: Non-Current Assets 

Gross Deprecitaion Accumulated Net Net 
Valuation 1996/97 Depreciation Assets as Assets as 

30/6/97 s 30/6/97 at 30/6/97 at 30/6/96 
Freehold Land (At Indep. s s s s 

valuation 1994) 
- Hospital 176.250 176.250 176.250 
- Nursing Home 58,750 58.750 58,750 

- -  ��-� 

Total Freehold Land 235,000 235,000 235,000 
- --- 

Buildings 
-Hospital (At Indep. Val. 1994 981.362 16.014 47.987 933.375 949.389 
-Hospital Upgrade (At Cost) 489.464 2.503 2.503 4186.961 
·Nursing Home (At Indep. Val (1994 566.720 1 1 . 3 3 4  34.003 5 3 2 . 7 1 7  544.051 
-Hostel (At Cost) 874.440 4.636 4.636 869.804 

Total Buildings 2,911,986 34,487 89,129 2,822,857 1,493,440 

Total Land and Buildings 3,146,986 34,487 89,129 3,057,857 1,728,440 

Plant, Equipment and Fittings - At Cost 
Plant 190.681 1 3 . 4 3 5  7 1 . 3 3 7  1 1 9. 3 4 4  5 9 . 5 7 6  
Transport 148.428 32.070 74.012 7 4. 4 1 6  71.462 
Major Medical 187,711 15.661 109.052 78.659 8 1 . 2 9 1  
Computers and Communication 116.059 16.540 41.344 74.715 75.787 
Other Equipment 350,637 17.38] 95.707 254.930 419.207 

Sub-Total Plant 
and Equipment 993,516 95,087 391,452 602,064 337,323 

Furniture and Fittings 161.704 11 .327 66.504 95.200 410.683 

Total Plant, Equipment 
and Fittings 1,155,220 106,414 457,956 697,264 378,006 

Total Non-Current Assets 4,302,206 140,901 547,085 3 ,755,121 2,106,446 

Valuations of land and buildings 

The basis of valuation of land and buildings is replacement cost less accumulated depreciation on that 
portion of the assets useful life that has expired The 199 valuations were cared out by Ian Wilson 
AVLE (VALS) as at 30th June, 1994 
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Note 18 continued . 

Additions 
(Cost) 

$ 

Disposals 
(W.D.V.) 

$ 

Additions and Disposals 1997 
Buildings 
Plant and Equipment 

---���- 

Total 

1,363.904 
471.275. 

1,835,179 

45,606 

45,606 

Note 19: Reconciliation of Cash 

For the purposes of the Statement of cash flows. the hospital considers cash to include cash on hand and 
in banks. and investments in money market instruments. Cash at the end of the reporting period as 
shown in the Statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial 
position as follows: 

1997 1996 
$ $ 

Cash on Hand 
Financial Institutions 29.166 185,619 
Cash on Hold 500 500 

- - - � � -  

Total Cash at 30 June 29,666 186,119 

Note 20: Reconciliation of Net Cash From Operating Activities to Operating Result 

Operating Surplus for the Year 

Non-Cash Movements 
Depreciation 
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 
Increase in Employee Entitlements 
(Net Revenue) from Sale of Plant and Equipment 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 
(Increase)/Decrease in Receviables 
Non-cash Donation 

Net Cash from Operating Acivities 

Total Total 
1996/1997 1995/96 

$ $ 

307,595 781,856 

140.901 110.965 
39,175 47 .686 
74.494 79.178 

(26,884) (30,636) 
(20.360) 18,186 
(10,905) (3.202) 

(17.809) 

504,016 986,224 

Note 21:  Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 

The Hospita l  had an unused overdraft facility of $30.000 with the National Australia Bank for the period 
1st July 1996 until 31  March .  199 7 .  

Note 22: Patient Fees (Refer Note 4) 

Patient Fees Raised Patient Fees Receivable 

1996 
$ 

63,095 

1997 
$ 

66,434 

1995/96 
$ 

1996/97 
$ 

166 .211 214,889 31.741 46,589 
695 , 776 659,321 3 5, 3 1 2  16 ,706 

. -   

861,987 874,210 67,053 63,295 
--- - - ---- --- 

(619)  (200) 

Acute Inpatients 
Nursing Home 

Total 

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Net Patient Fees Receivable 

Commonwealth Nursing Home inpatient benefits are included in patient fee revenue. The Hospital 
charges fees in accordance with the Department of Health and Community Services Victoria directives. 
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Note 22 continued...... 

1996/97 1995/96 

s $ 

Bad and Doubtful Debts 
Acute Inpatients 600 1.178 

Nursing Home 600 697 

Total 1,200 1,875 

Note 23: Recoveries (Refer Note 7) 

1996/97 1995/96 

$ $ 

Use of Hospital Facilities 3,005 25 

Salaries and Wages Recoveries 16,417 10.050 
Insurance Recoveries 1.341 sos 

Telephone Recoveries 1.918 2.167 
Commissions 137 161 
Sale of Surplus Goods 1.565 5.172 
Sundry 810 4.036 

Total 25,193 22,116 

Note 24: Abnormal Items 

Abnormal Revenue 
Commonwealth Nursing Home Fees 1995/96# 
Commonwealth Nursing Home Fees 1994/95# # 

Aged Care Leave Payment 
Net increase to Operating Result 

1996/97 
$ 

22.647 
21 ,395 

44,042 

1995/96 
$ 

57,439 
57,439 

The Department of Human Services made two payments, totalling $96.855, to the hospital as a 
discharge of its liability for leave accrued by staff working in the nursing home prior to its transfer to 
Commonwealth responsibility under CAM/SAM funding as at 1st July 1994. The second and final 
payment of $57.439 was made in 1995/96 

# The Commonwealth Department of Health and Family Services made a retrospective payment dating 
back to 1994/95 in recognition as the Nursing Home being classified as designated/isolated. This 
designated funding has been received on a monthly basis in 1995/96 and 1996/97. 

## Payment received after the reconciliation of the 1995/96 Nursing Home Funding from the 
Commonwealth Department of Health and Family Services. 

Note 25: Commitments 

Capital Commitments 
Land and Buildings (No later than 1 year) 

Total 

Note 25a: Contingent Liabilties 

As at 30th June 1997, there were no known contingent liabilties. 
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1996/97 
$ 

24.787 
24,787 

1995/96 
$ 



Note 26: Superannuation 

The Financial Management Act 1994 came into operation as at 1st July 1994. This act has amended the 
superannuation disclosure requirements applicable to contributed income sector bodies for the 1994/95 
and subsequent financial years. Accordingly. the following are disclosed; 

(i) The hospital contributes to the Hospitals Superannuation Fund 

(ii) Contributions made by the Hospital during 1996/97 were $133,041 

(iii) As at balance date, contributions totalling $4,705. were outstanding in respect of the 
1996/97 year. 

(iv) In accordance with Section 29 121 (a) of the Hospitals Superannuation Act 1988. participating 
employer contributions are calculated as a percentage of the employee's salary. Separate contributions 
are determined for Basic Benefits/HOSfund on the one hand and optional Contributory Benefits on the 
other, in accordance with Section 29 (3). The rates for 1996/97 for all Class A participating employers 
were 

Basic Benefit Schemes - Payrolls greater than $1m - 6% 

Contributory Scheme Employee Employer 

Contribution Rate 3.0% 3.0% 

4.0% 4.0% 

6.0% 7.0% 

(v) As at balance date there were no loans to the hospital from employee Superannuation Funds. The 
unfunded superannuation liability in respect to members of the Hospitals Superannuation Fund is 
shown as a liability separately by the Department of Treasury and Finance. 

Note 27: Responsible Person Related Disclosures 

(a) Responsible Persons 
The following persons were Boardmembers of the Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital during the 
1996/97 financial year. 

Mr. R. R. Hawkins 

Mr. J. S. Warner 

Dr. P. A. J. Dover 

Mrs. H. Tucker 

Mrs. S. Cormack 

Mr. Timothy Free was the Accountable Officer during the 1996/97 financial year. 

Dr. D. W. Currie 

Dr. R. W. Bade 

Mr. M. Holland 

Mt. R. McDonald 

Mrs. E. Kealy 

MIS. E. M. M. Edgar 

MYS. J Heffernan 

Mt. C. Kealy 

(b) Remuneration of Responsible Persons 
No remuneration was paid to any of the Responsible Persons in 1996/97. 

1996/97 

$ 

nil 

1995/96 

$ 

nil 

(c) Retirement Benefits of Responsible Persons 
No retirement benefits were paid to any of the Responsible Persons in 1996/97 

1996/97 

$ 

nil 

1995/96 

$ 

nil 

(d) Other Transactions with Responsible Persons and their Related Parties 
Two Boardmembers. Dr Bade and Dr. Dover have provided medical services to the Hospital in their 
capacity as Visiting Medical Officers. on normal commercial terms and conditions. The aggregate 
amounts were; 

Medical Services 

(e) Executive Officer Remuneration 

No hospital executive receives remuneration in excess of $100.000 
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1997 

$ 

116,101 

1996 

$ 

133,313 



Note 28: Reconciliation of Changes in Equity 

Total Total Retained Earnings 

1997 1996 1997 1996 

$ $ $ $ 

Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period 3.080.492 2.298.636 3,080.492 2,298.636 
Operating Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year 307,595 781.856 307.595 781,856 

Balance at End of Reporting Period 3,338,087 3,080,492 3,388,087 3,080,492 

Note 29: Donations 
Total Donation of $72,416 received during the year included the following significant donations. 

Handbury Family 
Murray to Moyne Cycle Relay Team 
Edenhope Ladies Auxiliary 
Barkala Flats for the Aged 
Edenhope Motorcycle Club 
Mr. P. Carracher 
Apsley/Langkoop RSL ("Apsley Remembers' Group) 
Edenhope Art Group 
Edenhope Lions Club 
Edenhope Lutheran Church 
J .  &.  E. McDonald 
MS. J .  Campbell 
W. A. & A. Hately 
MrS. H.  White 
Mr. H .  Wilks 
Mr. J .  McDougall 
Edenhope Senior Citizens Club 
Mr. J .  Donne 
Youth Suicide Program 
R. C. McFarlane 
Mrs. M. McLean 
Mrs. J .  Astbury 
Edenhope Golf Club 
Mrs. M. Chomley 
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1996/97 
$ 

25,000 
13,370 

9,000 
5.000 
4.840 
3.000 
2 ,540 

500 
450 
354 
300 
300 
210 
210 
200 
160 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

100 

100 

1995/96 
$ 

10 ,712 
6,067 

3,000 

300 

700 

260 



Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital 

CERTIFICATION 

In our opinion the Report of Operations and the Financial Statements of the Edenhope and Dst.ct 
Memorial Hospital. comprising Revenue and Expense Statement. Balance Sheet. Statement of 
Cash Flows, and notes to the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 1994 and the Directions of the Minister for Finance 
Part 9 reporting Provisions. 
In our opinion the financial statements represent fairly the financial transactions for year ended 
30th June 1997 and the financial position as at that date of the Edenhope and Distict Memoral 
Hospital. · 
At the date of signing the financial statements we are not sware of any. circumstances· wbx&h 
would cause any particulars in the statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

Ronald R. HAWKINS 

Chairperson 
[ O n  behalf of the Board] 

i1/ 

Timothy J. FREE 

Chief Executive Officer 
[Accountable Officer] 

Datea me 6., 
[Edenhope] 

day of c4...a.6 
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Auditor-General's Report 

ti, ... 
. 

. 

.. 

VICTORIAN 

AUDITOR 

GENERAL'S 

OFFICE 

dug n the 

/bl Interest 

Audit Scope 

The accompanying financial statements of the Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital for 
the year ended 30 June 1997, comprising revenue and expense statement, balance sheet, 
statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, have been audited. The 
members of the Hospital's Board of Management are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements and the information they contain. An independent 
audit of the financial statements has been carried out in order to express an opinion on them as 
required by the Audit Act 1994. 

The audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide 
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
The audit procedures included an examination, on a test basis. of evidence supporting the 
amounts and other disclosures in the financial statements, and the evaluation of accounting 
policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form 
an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial statements are presented fairly 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements and comply with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 

1994, so as to present a view which is consistent with my understanding of the financial 
position of the Edenhope and District Memorial Hospital and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows. 

The audit opinion expressed on the financial statements has been formed on the above basis. 

Audit Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Edenhope 
and District Memorial Hospital as at 30 June 1997 and the results of its operations and its cash 
f1ows for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
other mandatory professional reporting requirements and comply with the requirements of the 
Financial Management Act 1994. 

MELBOURNE 
I  I  9 /  1997 

Level 14 ,222 ± h b o n  St, Melbourne Vietora 30tu 

Tel408+ 9651 601 F t 0 1 3 +  965/ 0050 
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